
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

GONZALES MUNICIPAL BUILDING   820 ST. JOSEPH STREET 
AGENDA –MAY 12, 2022   6:00 P.M. 

CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION, AND PLEDGES OF ALLEGIANCE 

CITY EVENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
• Announcements of upcoming City Events
• Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager
• Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor
• Recognition of actions by City employees
• Recognition of actions by community volunteers

HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
This time is set aside for any person who wishes to address the City Council. Each person should 
fill out the speaker’s register prior to the meeting. Presentations should be limited to no more than 
3 minutes. 

All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body, and not to any individual member 
thereof. Any person making personal, impertinent, or slanderous remarks while addressing 
the Council may be requested to leave the meeting. 

Discussion by the Council of any item not on the agenda shall be limited to statements of specific 
factual information given in response to any inquiry, a recitation of existing policy in response to 
an inquiry, and/or a proposal to place the item on a future agenda. The presiding officer, during 
the Hearing of Residents portion of the agenda, will call on those persons who have signed up to 
speak in the order they have registered. 

OTHER BUSINESS-ELECTION 
1.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-42 Canvassing the Returns and 

Officially declaring the results of the May 7, 2022 City of Gonzales Regular Election 

1.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Ordinance #2022-8 Calling a Runoff Election on 
June 14, 2022, for the purpose of Election a Mayor for the City of Gonzales; Providing for 
Notice of the Election 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 
The Consent Agenda is considered self-explanatory and will be enacted by the Council with one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless they are removed from the 
consent Agenda upon the request of the Mayor or a Councilmember.   

2.1 Minutes - Approval of the minutes for the April 14, 2022 Regular Meeting & April 26, 
2022 Called Meeting 



2.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-43 Accepting the Bids and 
Awarding the Alternate Bids in the Contract for the 2021 Utility Projects to Qro Mex 
Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $517,838.00 

2.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-44 Authorizing the City 
Manager to award a contract for consulting services to Hicks and Company for the 
preparation of a National Historic Register Nomination for the Edwards School in an 
amount not to exceed $15,000 

2.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-45 Authorizing Designated 
Signatory for Contractual and Financial Documents for the Texas CDBG Downtown 
Revitalization Program 

2.5 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-46 Designating Sage Capital 
Bank as the Gonzales Economic Development’s Depository and Authorizing the Board 
President to Negotiate and Enter into a Depository Agreement with Sage Capital Bank 

RESOLUTIONS 
3.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-47 Authorizing the City 

Manager to Enter into a Lease Agreement with Yamaha Motor Finance Corporation for a 
Four- Year Lease on ten Yamaha Drive2 QuieTech fleet golf carts for an Annual Amount 
of $6,960.00 

3.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-48 Approving a Corrected 
Amendment to Original Agreement and Amendments between the Gonzales Economic 
Development Corporation and Winbin Ventures LLC. 

3.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-49 Authorizing the 
Appointments Gonzales Convention & Visitors Bureau, Gonzales Economic Development 
Corporation, & Main Street Advisory Board 

3.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-50 Approving the Lease 
Agreement, with Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. for the lease of several budgeted 
departmental vehicles and authorizing the City Manager to execute said agreements 

STAFF/BOARD REPORTS 
4.1 Finance Director will provide feedback on any questions regarding: 

• Financial Reports for funds as of April 30, 2022
• Cash & Investment by Fund as of April 30, 2022
• Quarterly Investment Report Ending March 31, 2022

4.2 City Manager, Tim Patek will update the City Council on the following: 
• Hydro-plant Generation numbers
• Timeline on Capital Improvement Projects

o Recently Completed Projects
o Projects Currently in Process
o Upcoming Projects



CLOSED SESSION 
5.1 (1) Pursuant to Section 551.074 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales 

will meet in closed session to deliberate the appointment, employment, evaluation, 
reassignment, duties, discipline, or dismissal of a public officer or employee.  

a) City Manager Evaluation

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
6.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action regarding matters discussed in closed session, and/or 
other actions necessary or recommended related to such discussions in closed session.  

CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS 
• Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for items on a future City Council agenda
• Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers
• City and community events attended and to be attended
• Continuing education events attended and to be attended

ADJOURN 

EXECUTIVE SESSION:  The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the above items in Executive Closed Session if 
they meet the qualifications in Sections 551.071, 551.072, 551.073, 551.074, 551.076, 551.087, of Chapter 551 of the Government 
Code of the State of Texas. 

I certify that a copy of the May 12, 2022, agenda of items to be considered by the Gonzales City Council was posted on the City 
Municipal Building bulletin board on the 9th day of May, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. and remained posted continuously for at least 72 hours 
preceding the scheduled time of the meeting.  I further certify that the above agenda was removed on __________ day of 
____________________, 2022 at ______am/pm.   I further certify that the following News Media were properly notified of the 
above stated meeting:  Gonzales Inquirer. 

__________________________ 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

The meeting facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available.  Request for accommodations or 
interpretive services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting.  Please Contact the City Secretary's office at (830)672-2815 for 
further information.



   COUNCIL AGENDA 
 ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

 DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM  
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2022-42 Canvassing the Returns 
and Officially Declaring the Results of the 
May 7, 2022 City of Gonzales General 
Election for the purpose of electing Mayor for 
the City of Gonzales 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 

BACKGROUND: 
Election Code Section 67.003 states that each local canvassing authority shall convene to 
conduct the local canvass at the time set by the canvassing authority’s presiding officer not later 
than the eleventh day after Election Day and not earlier than the third day after Election Day.   

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
The Canvassing process is consistent with Texas Election Code Section 67.003. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 

1



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-42 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
CANVASSING THE RETURNS AND OFFICIALLY DECLARING THE RESULTS OF 
THE MAY 7, 2022 CITY OF GONZALES GENERAL ELECTION FOR THE PURPOSE 
OF ELECTING MAYOR FOR THE CITY OF GONZALES; AND DECLARING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Election Code Section 67.003 states that each local canvassing authority shall 
convene to conduct the local canvass at the time set by the canvassing authority’s presiding 
officer not later than the eleventh day after election day and not earlier than the third day after 
election day; and 

WHEREAS, on May 7, 2022 the said election was duly and legally held in conformity with the 
election laws of the state of Texas, and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas canvassed the election returns on 
May 12, 2022 and hereby declare the result of such general election for the purpose of electing 
Mayor for the City of Gonzales.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1. The foregoing recitals and legislative findings are hereby incorporated and made 
an effective and enforceable part of this Resolution. 
 
Section 2. A total of ballots cast for the general election during early voting were 512 by 
personal appearance, 49 mail ballots, and 269 votes were cast on Election Day.  Total number of 
votes cast in this election was 830.  
 
Section 3. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby finds that the results of 
the general election to for the purpose of election a Mayor for the city of Gonzales as set forth 
below reflect the reported votes, and the canvass of votes is hereby approved.  
CANDIDATE Early Voting  Absentee  Election Day TOTAL VOTES 

S.H. “Steve” Sucher  202 24 98 324 

Isaac Anzaldua 165 9 97 271 

Todd Bright  145 16 74 235 

Total Votes Counted  512 49 269 830 

 
Section 4.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby declares the canvass 
determined that, in the race for Mayor, no candidates received a majority of the votes cast, 
therefore requiring a Runoff Election to be held.   
 

2



 

 

Section 5. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 6. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 7. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 8. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 9. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary  
 

3



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Ordinance #2022-8 Calling a Runoff Election 
on June 14, 2022, for the Purpose of Electing a 
Mayor for the City of Gonzales; Providing For 
Early Voting; Providing For Notice of the 
Election 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Ordinance 
 
BACKGROUND: 
According to Election Code Chapter 2; Subchapter B. if no candidate for a particular office 
receives the vote necessary to be elected in an election requiring a majority vote, a runoff 
election for that office is required.    
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This procedure and action is consistent with Election Code Chapter 2 Subchapter B. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Budget includes $20,000 for election expenses.  Approximately 
$11,500.00 still available in the line item for elections.     
        
ATTACHMENTS: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Respectfully recommends approval of this Ordinance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

4



 

 

ORDINANCE 2022-8 (ORDENANZA 2022-8) 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
CALLING A RUNOFF ELECTION ON JUNE 14, 2022 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ELECTING MAYOR FOR THE CITY OF GONZALES; PROVIDING FOR EARLY 
VOTING; PROVIDING FOR NOTICE OF THE ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR 
OTHER RELATED MATTERS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
 
UNA ORDENANZA DEL CONSEJO MUNICIPAL DE LA CIUDAD DE GONZALES, 
TEXAS, PARA CONVOCAR UNA ELECCIÓN DE SEGUNDA VUELTA EL 14 DE JUNIO 
DE 2022 CON EL PROPÓSITO DE ELEGIR AL ALCALDE DE LA CIUDAD DE 
GONZALES; DISPONER LA VOTACIÓN ANTICIPADA; DISPONER EL AVISO DE LA 
ELECCIÓN; DISPONER OTROS ASUNTOS RELACIONADOS; Y DISPONER UNA 
FECHA DE ENTRADA EN VIGENCIA.  
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Texas Election Code Sec. 2.021 through 2.023, if no candidate for a 
place on City Council receives a majority of the vote a runoff election is required between the 
candidates who receive the highest and second highest number of votes; and 
 
EN VISTA DE QUE, en virtud de las secciones 2.021 hasta la 2.023 del Código Electoral de 
Texas, si ningún candidato para un lugar en el Consejo Municipal recibe una mayoría del voto, 
se requiere una elección de segunda vuelta entre los candidatos que recibieron el mayor número 
de votos y el segundo mayor número de votos; y 
 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 5.05, Article V. Nomination and Elections of the City of 
Gonzales Home Rule Charter, in the absence of a majority of the votes cast for that position a 
run-off election shall be held in accordance with State law; and 
 
EN VISTA DE QUE, en virtud de la Sección 5.05 del Artículo V. Nominación y Elecciones de la 
Carta Orgánica de Gobierno Autónomo de la Ciudad de Gonzales, a falta de una mayoría de los 
votos emitidos para ese cargo, se celebrará una elección de segunda vuelta en conformidad con 
la ley estatal; y 
 
WHEREAS, a canvassing of the returns and declaring the results of a General Election held on 
May 7, 2022 was approved by the City Council on May 12, 2022; and 
 
EN VISTA DE QUE un escrutinio de los retornos y la declaración de los resultados de una 
Elección General celebrada el 7 de mayo de 2022 fue aprobada por el Concejo Municipal el 12 
de mayo de 2022; y 
 
WHEREAS, the canvass determined that, in the race for Mayor no candidates received a 
majority of the votes cast; and 
 
EN VISTA DE QUE el escrutinio determinó que, en la contienda de Alcade, ningún candidato 
recibió la mayoría de los votos emitidos; y 
 

5



 

 

WHEREAS, the two candidates receiving the highest number of votes for the office of Mayor 
were S.H. “Steve” Sucher and Isaac Anzaldua. 
 
EN VISTA DE QUE los dos candidatos que recibieron el mayor número de votos para el cargo 
del Alcalde fueron S.H. “Steve” Sucher y Isaac Anzaldua. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
AHORA, POR LO TANTO, EL CONSEJO MUNICIPAL DE LA CIUDAD DE 
GONZALES, TEXAS ORDENA: 
 
Section 1. The recitals set out above are hereby found to be true and correct and are 
incorporated within this Ordinance for all purposes. 
 
Sección 1. Por la presente, se halla que los considerandos expuestos antes son verdaderos y 
correctos y se incorporan dentro de esta ordenanza para todos los efectos. 
 
Section 2. On Election Day, June 14, 2022, the polls shall be open between the hours of 7:00 

a.m. and 7:00 p.m., at the locations established by Gonzales County on the dates 
and times as follows, or as may be amended by Gonzales County, per the 
contract. 

 
Gonzales County Election Precinct  Voting Location 
Pct. 1  Randle Rather Bldg, 427 St. George, 

STE 100, Gonzales, TX 78629 
                                                

Pct. 2  Gonzales Master Gardner’s, 623 N. 
Fair St., Gonzales, TX 78629 
                                                

Pct. 3  Gonzales City Building, 820 St. 
Joseph, Gonzales, TX 78629 
                                                 

Pct. 4  Nixon City Building, 100 W. 3rd St., 
Nixon, TX 78140                                                
                           

Pct. 12  Riverside Community Center, 110 
St. Lawrence Street, Gonzales, TX 
78629 
 

Sección 2. El Día de Elección, el 14 de junio de 2022, las casillas abrirán en el horario de 
a.m. a 7:00 p.m., en los lugares de votación establecidos por el Condado de 
Gonzales en las siguientes fechas y horarios o según el Condado de Gonzales los 
modifique en virtud del contrato. 

 
 

6



 

 

Precinto electoral del  
 Condado de Gonzales   Lugar de Votación 

Pct. 1  Randle Rather Bldg, 427 St. George, 
STE 100, Gonzales, TX 78629 
                                                

Pct. 2  Gonzales Master Gardner’s, 623 N. 
Fair St., Gonzales, TX 78629 
                                                

Pct. 3  Gonzales City Building, 820 St. 
Joseph, Gonzales, TX 78629 
                                                 

Pct. 4  Nixon City Building, 100 W. 3rd St., 
Nixon, TX 78140                                                

                           
Pct. 12  Riverside Community Center, 110 St. 

Lawrence Street, Gonzales, TX 
78629 

 
Section 3.  Early Voting by personal appearance shall commence on May 31, 2022 and 

continue through June 10, 2022, at the locations established by Gonzales County 
on the dates and times as follows, or as may be amended by Gonzales County, per 
the contract. 

 
Main Early Voting Location: 
Randle-Rather Building – EV Election Room 
427 St. George, Gonzales, Texas 78629 

 
May 31st-June 3rd  Tuesday – Friday  8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
June 6th-June 10th     Monday-Friday  8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

 
Additionally, early voting locations will be identified in the contract executed 
with Gonzales County. 
 

Sección 3.  La votación anticipada en persona empezará el 31 de mayo de 2022 y continuará 
hasta el 10 de junio de 2022 inclusive en los lugares de votación establecidos por 
el Condado de Gonzales en las siguientes fechas y horarios o según el Condado 
de Gonzales los modifique en virtud del contrato. 

 
Principal lugar de votación anticipada: 
Randle-Rather Building – Sala de elección de votación anticipada 
427 St. George, Gonzales, Texas 78629 

 
31 de mayo al 3 de junio Martes a viernes  8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
6 de junio al 10 de junio Lunes a viernes  8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 

 
 

7



 

 

Además, los lugares de votación anticipada serán identificados en el contrato 
firmado con el Condado de Gonzales. 
 

Section 4. The Candidates for the Runoff Election shall be as follows: 
 

Mayor: S.H. “Steve” Sucher and Isaac Anzaldua. 
 
Sección 3. Los candidatos para la Elección de Segunda Vuelta serán los siguientes: 
 

Alcalde: S.H. “Steve” Sucher y Isaac Anzaldua 
 
Section 4. The Runoff Election shall be conducted in accordance with the requirements of 

the Texas Election Code and the City Charter. 
 
Sección 4. La Elección de Segunda Vuelta se celebrará en conformidad con los requisitos 

del Código Electoral de Texas y la Carta Orgánica de la Ciudad. 
 
Section 6. Applications for ballot by mail shall be received by the Gonzales Election 

Administrator at 427 St. George, Ste 306, Gonzales, Texas 78629 no later than 
close of business on June 3, 2022. 

 
Sección 6. Las solicitudes de boletas por correo serán recibidas por el Administrador de 

Elecciones de Gonzales en 427 St. George, Ste 306, Gonzales, Texas 78629 antes 
del cierre de operaciones el junio 3, 2022. 

 
Section 7. This election shall be held in accordance with the Constitution of the State of 

Texas and the Election Code, and all resident qualified voters of the City shall be 
eligible to vote in the election.  The City Secretary and Mayor are hereby 
authorized and directed to take any and all actions necessary to comply with the 
provisions of the Code in carry out and conducting the election, whether or not 
expressly authorized herein.  

 
Sección 7. Esta elección se celebrará en conformidad con la Constitución del Estado de 

Texas y el Código Electoral, y todos los votantes habilitados residentes de la 
Ciudad serán elegibles para votar en la elección.  Por la presente, se autoriza e 
instruye a la Secretaria de la Ciudad y a la Alcaldesa a que tomen todas y cada 
una de las medidas necesarias para cumplir con las disposiciones del Código 
para realizar y celebrar la elección, sean expresamente autorizadas en la 
presente o no.  

 
Section 8.  The Mayor and/or the City Secretary of the City of Gonzales are hereby 

authorized to execute and/or issue, for and on behalf of the City, such orders, 
documents, and forms as may, from time to time, be promulgated by the Secretary 
of State of the State of Texas in conjunction with the election herein ordained. 

 
Sección 8.  Por la presente, se autoriza a la Alcaldesa y/o la Secretaria de la Ciudad de la 

8



 

 

Ciudad de Gonzales a firmar y/o expedir para la Ciudad y en su nombre, ciertas 
órdenes, documentos y formas como pueda, periódicamente, promulgar la 
Secretaría del Estado de Texas en conjunto con la elección ordenada en este 
documento. 

 
Section 9. Said election shall be held in accordance with Texas Election Code and the 

Federal Voting Rights Act of 1965, as amended. 
 
Sección 9. Dicha Elección se llevará a cabo de acuerdo con el Código Electoral de Texas y 

la Ley Federal de Derecho al Voto de 1965 y sus enmiendas. 
 
Section 10. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the City Council of the City that the 

phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs, and sections of this Ordinance are 
severable, and if any phrase, clause sentence, paragraph or section of this 
Ordinance shall be declared unconstitutional by the valid judgment or decree of 
any court of competent jurisdiction, such unconstitutionality shall not affect any 
of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of this 
Ordinance, since the same would have been enacted by the City Council without 
the incorporation in this Ordinance of any such unconstitutional phrase, clause, 
sentence, paragraph or section.  

 
Sección 10. Por la presente, se declara que es intención del Consejo Municipal de la Ciudad 

que las frases, cláusulas, oraciones, párrafos y secciones de esta Ordenanza sean 
divisibles, y si cualquier frase, cláusula, oración, párrafo o sección de esta 
Ordenanza fuera declarado inconstitucional por el fallo o decreto válido de 
cualquier tribunal con competencia jurisdiccional, dicha inconstitucionalidad no 
afectará ninguna de las frases, cláusulas, oraciones, párrafos o secciones 
restantes de esta Ordenanza, debido a que la misma hubiera sido promulgada por 
el Consejo Municipal sin la incorporación en esta Ordenanza de cualquiera de 
esas frases, cláusulas, oraciones, párrafos o secciones inconstitucionales.  

 
Section 11. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this 

Ordinance was adopted was open to the public and that public notice of the time, 
place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings 
Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 

 
Sección 11. Por la presente, se halla y de determina oficialmente que la asamblea en la cual 

esta Ordenanza fue adoptada estuvo abierta al público y que se dio aviso público 
de la hora, el lugar y el propósito de dicha asamblea según lo exige la Ley de 
Asambleas Públicas en el Capítulo 551 del Código de Gobierno de Texas y sus 
enmiendas. 

 
Section 12. This ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
Sección 12. Esta ordenanza entrará en vigencia inmediatamente después su aprobación. 
 

9



 

 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED, APPROVED, AND EFFECTIVE THE 12th DAY of May, 2022. 
 
APROBADA, ADOPTADA Y EFECTIVA EL DÍA 12 de mayo de 2022. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Mayor (Alcaldesa), Connie Kacir 

ATTEST (ATESTIGUA): 

_________________________________ 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary (Secretaria de la Ciudad) 

 

 
 

10



April 14, 2022 Council Minutes  Page 1 of 6 

 

CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES –APRIL 14, 2022 

 
The regular meeting of the City Council was held on April 14, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. at the Gonzales 
Municipal Building, 820 St. Joseph Street. This was an OPEN MEETING, open to the public, 
subject to the open meeting laws of the State of Texas and, as required by law, was duly posted, 
at the Gonzales Municipal Building, giving notice of time, date, place, and agenda thereof. The 
meeting notice, agenda and agenda packet were posted online at www.gonzales.texas.gov. 
 
CALL TO ORDER, INVOCATION AND PLEDGE  
Mayor Kacir called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and a quorum was certified. 

 
STAFF PARTICIPATING: 
Tim Patek-City Manager, Kristina Vega-City Secretary, Tim Crow-Chief of Police, Amanda 
Garza-J.B. Wells Park Arena Manager and Laura Zella-Finance Director   
 
CITY EVENTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS  

• Announcements of upcoming City Events by the Mayor-Independence Relay in coming 
up at the end of March, Texas Junior High Rodeo in May,  

• Announcements and recognitions by the City Manager   
• Announcements and recognitions by the Mayor-commended the GEDC on the 

conference that they hosted regarding economic development 
• Recognition of actions by City employees  
• Recognition of actions by community volunteers by the Mayor-LCRA Steps  Forward, 

Sesame Club’s Little Free Library that was placed at JB Wells Park 
 
HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
Amanda Garza-JB Wells Park Arena Manager invited the Council members to the Director’s 
Dinner for the Texas Junior High Rodeo Association Finals. 
 
Tiffany Hutchinson-Padilla, Main Street Manager spoke in favor of the Tourism Director 
position.  
 
PROCLAMATIONS  
1.1 Mayor Kacir presented a proclamation for Fair Housing Month  
 
1.2 Mayor Kacir presented Hannah Fisher-Klug, Community Engagement Specialist, Sexual 

Assault Advocate for the Guadalupe Valley Family Violence Shelter, Inc. a proclamation 
for National Sexual Assault Awareness and Prevention Month 

Attendee Name Title Status 
Connie L. Kacir Mayor Present 
Joseph Kridler Council Member, District 1 Present 
Sherri Koepp Council Member, District 2 Present 
Bobby O’Neal Council Member, District 3 Present 
Ronda Miller Council Member, District 5 Present  

11

http://www.gonzales.texas.gov/


April 14, 2022 Council Minutes  Page 2 of 6 

 

OTHER BUSINESS 
2.1 Discussion and possible action on recommendation to the City Council from the 

Gonzales Convention & Visitor’s Bureau regarding amendments to the current job 
description and other aspects of the position of Tourism Director 

  
Council Member Miller moved to table this item until a workshop could be held between 
the City Council and the Chamber of Commerce to receive their recommendation on the 
matter.  Council Member Koepp seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call 
vote.  For:  Koepp, Miller & Kridler.  Nay: Kacir & O'Neal.  The motion passed 3 to 2. 

2.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action Regarding the Disposition and Potential Sale of 
Surplus Real Property 

 
Council Member Miller moved to table any action regarding the potential sale of surplus 
real property until additional information is provided.  Council Member O’Neal seconded 
the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion 
passed 5 to 0. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS  
The Consent Agenda is considered self-explanatory and will be enacted by the Council with one 
motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless they are removed from the 
Consent Agenda upon the request of the Mayor or a Councilmember.   
 
3.1 Minutes - Approval of the minutes for the March 10, 2022 Regular Meeting  

 
3.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-31 Authorizing the City 

Manager to execute an amendment to the contract with Gonzales Crystal Theater, Inc. 
for the Operations and Restoration of the Crystal Theatre  

 
3.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-32 Authorizing the purchase 

of a Phase 2-Shade Structure Building for the Police Department in the amount of 
$12,329.60 

 
3.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-33 Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute a Service Agreement with Gonzales Main Street, Inc. 
 

3.5 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-34 Approving a Performance 
agreement between the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation and the Gonzales 
Main Street 

 
3.6 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-35 Authorizing an 

Expenditure in an amount not to exceed $1,000.00 from the Restricted Use Municipal 
Court Security Fund for City Staff to attend a Court Security Conference  

 
3.7 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-36 Approving the 

amendments to the Bylaws of the Gonzales Main Street, Inc. 

12



April 14, 2022 Council Minutes  Page 3 of 6 

 

 
3.8 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-37 Ratifying the Professional 

Services Agreement with between the City of Gonzales and SAFEbuilt Texas, LLC to 
perform Building Official and Inspection Services for the City of Gonzales   

 
ACTION:  Items 3.1, 3.2, 3.4 through 3.7      APPROVED   
 Council Member Koepp moved to approve the consent agenda items 3.1, 3.2, & 3.4 

through 3.7; removing agenda items 3.3 and 3.8 for separate consideration.  Council 
Member Kridler seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  
Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0. 

 
3.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-32 Authorizing the purchase 

of a Phase 2-Shade Structure Building for the Police Department in the amount of 
$12,329.60 

 
ACTION:  Items 3.3         APPROVED   
 Council Member O’Neal moved to approve Resolution #2022-32 Authorizing the 

purchase of a Phase 2-Shade Structure Building for the Police Department in the amount 
of $12,329.60.  Council Member Kridler seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a 
roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0. 

 
3.8 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-37 Ratifying the Professional 

Services Agreement with between the City of Gonzales and SAFEbuilt Texas, LLC to 
perform Building Official and Inspection Services for the City of Gonzales   

ACTION:  Items 3.8         APPROVED   
Council Member Kridler moved to approve Resolution #2022-37 Ratifying the 
Professional Services Agreement with between the City of Gonzales and SAFEbuilt 
Texas, LLC to perform Building Official and Inspection Services for the City of 
Gonzales.  Council Member O’Neal seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll 
call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0 

RESOLUTIONS 
4.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-38 Authorizing the City 

Manager to Execute Addendum One to the Agreement with Frontier Access, LLC 
(Frontier Waste Solutions) for Solid Waste Collection and Disposal Services providing 
for a Residential, Commercial and Industrial Unit Fuel Cost Adjustment increase in the 
amount of 1.5% 

 
 The City Manager requested to move this item to a future agenda.   

4.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-39 Designating Sage Capital 
Bank as the City’s Depository and Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate and Enter 
into a Depository Agreement  

 

13



April 14, 2022 Council Minutes  Page 4 of 6 

 

ACTION:  Items 4.2         APPROVED 
Council Member O’Neal moved to approve Resolution #2022-39 Designating Sage 
Capital Bank as the City’s Depository and Authorizing the City Manager to Negotiate 
and Enter into a Depository Agreement Council Member Koepp seconded the motion.  
Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0. 

4.3 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-40 Accepting the Bids and 
Awarding the Contract for the 2021 Utility Projects to Qro Mex Construction Co., Inc. in 
the amount of $1,073,204.00  

ACTION:  Items 4.3         APPROVED   
Council Member Koepp moved to approve Resolution #2021-40 Accepting the Bids and 
Awarding the Contract for the 2021 Utility Projects to Qro Mex Construction Co., Inc. in 
the amount of $1,073,204.00. Council Member Miller seconded the motion.  Mayor 
Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  4. Abstained: Kridler. The motion passed 4 to 0. 

4.4 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Resolution #2022-41 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Enter into a Master Equity Lease Agreement, Amendment to Master Equity 
Lease Agreement, Maintenance Agreement, and Maintenance Management and Fleet 
Rental Agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. to allow for the future lease of 
several budgeted departmental vehicles  

ACTION:  Items 4.4         APPROVED   
Council Member O’Neal moved to approve Resolution #2022-41 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Enter into a Master Equity Lease Agreement, Amendment to Master Equity 
Lease Agreement, Maintenance Agreement, and Maintenance Management and Fleet 
Rental Agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. to allow for the future lease of 
several budgeted departmental vehicles.  Council Member Kridler seconded the motion.  
Mayor Kacir called for a roll call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0. 

 
ORDINANCES 

5.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Ordinance #2022-6 Amending the Gonzales 
Code of Ordinances Chapter 8 Offenses and Nuisances; Article 8.200 Junked Vehicles 

ACTION:  Items 5.1         FAILED   
 Council Member Koepp moved to NOT approve Ordinance #2022-6 Amending the 

Gonzales Code of Ordinances Chapter 8 Offenses and Nuisances; Article 8.200 Junked 
Vehicles.  Council Member Kridler seconded the motion.  Mayor Kacir called for a roll 
call vote.  For:  Unanimous.  The motion passed 5 to 0. 

5.2 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on Ordinance #2022-7 Amending the City of 
Gonzales Master Rate and Fee Schedule for Garbage Rates due to Fuel Increase 

14



April 14, 2022 Council Minutes  Page 5 of 6 

 

The City Manager requested to move this item to a future agenda.  
 
STAFF/BOARD REPORTS 
6.1 Finance Director provided feedback on any questions regarding:  

• Financial Reports for funds as of March 31, 2022 
• Cash & Investment by Fund as of March 31, 2022 
• Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ending September 

30, 2021- Informed City Council that the audit will be discussed at the May 
meeting  

 
6.2 City Manager, Tim Patek updated the City Council on the following:  

• Request for Proposal JB Wells Park  
• Pressure Plane Analysis  
• Hydro-plant 
• Timeline on Capital Improvement Projects 

o Recently Completed Projects 
o Projects Currently in Process 
o Upcoming Projects 
 

CONVENE INTO CLOSED SESSION:  
The Council convened into closed session at 8:07 p.m. 
 
CLOSED SESSION 
7.1 (1) Pursuant to Section 551.087 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales 

will consult in closed session (1) to discuss or deliberate regarding commercial or 
financial information that the governmental body has received from a business prospect 
that the governmental body seeks to have locate, stay, or expand in or near the territory of 
the governmental body and with which the governmental body is conducting economic 
development negotiations; or (2) to deliberate the offer of a financial or other incentive to 
a business prospect described by Subdivision (1). 

A) Project A 
 

(2) Pursuant to Section 551.072 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales 
will consult in closed session to deliberate the purchase, exchange, lease, or value of real 
property if deliberation in an open meeting would have a detrimental effect on the 
position of the governmental body in negotiations with a third person:   

 
A) Oil and Gas Leases  

 
 (3) Pursuant to Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code, the City of Gonzales 

will consult in closed session with its attorney to receive legal advice regarding pending 
or contemplated litigation, a settlement offer, or matter in which the duty of the attorney 
to the governmental body under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of 

15



April 14, 2022 Council Minutes  Page 6 of 6 

 

the State Bar of Texas clearly conflicts with this chapter”, to include the following 
matters:  

 
A) Delinquent Hotel Motel Tax Collection 

• AR Guerra Holdings, LLC dba Sleep Inn and Suites 
 

(4) Pursuant to Section 551.086 of the Texas Government Code, to deliberate, vote or 
take final action on a competitive matter related to certain public power utilities: 

 
A) City of Gonzales Electric Utility System-Power Supply and Associated 

Competitive Matters 
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 
The Council convened into open session at 8:20 p.m. 

 
8.1 Discuss, Consider & Possible Action authorizing to negotiate matters discussed in closed 

session, and/or other actions necessary or recommended related to such discussions in 
closed session. 

 
No action was taken. 

CITY COUNCIL REQUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS   
 • Requests by Mayor and Councilmembers for items on a future City Council agenda 
 • Announcements by Mayor and Councilmembers  
 • City and community events attended and to be attended  

• Continuing education events attended and to be attended 
  
ADJOURN 
On a motion by Council Member O’Neal and second by Council Member Kridler, the meeting 
was adjourned at 8:23 p.m. 
 
Approved this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

16



  
CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 

CALLED CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES –APRIL 26, 2022  

 

 

April 26, 2022 Special Called Council Minutes  Page 1 of 1 

The Special Called meeting of the City Council was held on April 26, 2022 at 2:01 p.m. at the 
Gonzales Municipal Building, 820 St. Joseph Street. This was an OPEN MEETING, open to the 
public, subject to the open meeting laws of the State of Texas and, as required by law, was duly 
posted, at the Gonzales Municipal Building, giving notice of time, date, place, and agenda 
thereof. The meeting notice, agenda and agenda packet were posted online at 
www.gonzales.texas.gov. 
 
CALL TO ORDER   
Mayor Pro Tem O’Neal called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. and a quorum was certified. 

 
HEARING OF RESIDENTS 
No Public Comments were made.   
 
ACTION ITEMS 
1.  Discussion and possible action and/or direction to staff regarding the position of Tourism 

Director. Discussion may include, but are not limited to the following: 
a) Recommendation from the Chamber of Commerce and Visitor Center regarding 
the position or possible amendments to the existing agreement between the entities 
b) Details of the duties and responsibilities of the Tourism Director position 

 
The City Council engaged in discussions with the Chamber of Commerce pertaining to possible 
recommendations regarding the Tourism Director position and/or responsibilities.  
 
ADJOURN 
On a motion by Council Member Koepp and second by Council Member Kridler, the meeting 
was adjourned at 2:56 p.m. 
 
Approved this 12th day of May, 2022. 
   ___________________________________ 
   Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

Attendee Name Title Status 
Connie L. Kacir Mayor Absent 
Joseph Kridler Council Member, District 1 Present 
Sherri Koepp Council Member, District 2 Present 
Bobby O’Neal Council Member, District 3-Mayor Pro Tem Present 
Ronda Miller Council Member District 4 Present  

17

http://www.gonzales.texas.gov/


     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2022-43 Accepting the Bids and 
Awarding the Alternate Bids in the Contract 
for the 2021 Utility Projects to Qro Mex 
Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of 
$517,838.00. 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City has received bids for the 2021 Utility Improvement Projects.  These plans include the 
replacement of the replacement of an existing waterline in St. Joseph Street from Cone Street to 
Carol Street, the replacement of an existing waterline along Sarah DeWitt Drive from Church 
Street to Robertson Street, the replacement of a wastewater line in Klein Street from St. Andrew 
to Dallas, and the replacement of wastewater lines in St. Peter, Hamilton and Benton Streets.  
The portions of the contract for the St. Joseph Street waterline and the Sarah DeWitt Drive 
waterline were awarded last month.  This item is to award the remaining portions of the contract 
(wastewater line in Klein Street from St. Andrew to Dallas, and the wastewater lines in St. Peter, 
Hamilton and Benton Streets). 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
As funds are available, the city should consider reconstructing and replacing old, deteriorated 
water and wastewater lines in order to provide safe water and sewer services for the public. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The low bid received for all of the projects listed above was $1,591,042. The waterline portions 
of the contract were awarded at the April council meeting in the amount of $1,073,204.00 with 
instructions for staff to bring the wastewater portions of the contract to council to be considered 
and possibly awarded in May.   The wastewater portions of the project include lines in Klein 
Street, St. Peter Street, Hamilton Street and Benton Street.  The fiscal impact of performing this 
portion of the contract is $517,838.00. In addition to the construction cost the project also has 
incurred previously approved fees for surveying, engineering, bidding and construction phase 
services in the amount of $122,600, making the total fiscal impact of the project $1,713,642.  
This project is being funded partially by the 2019 Certificate of Obligation and partially from the 
water and wastewater funds. 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid tabulation 
 
 
 

18



 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the wastewater portions of this contract be awarded to Qro Mex 
Construction Co., Inc. in the amount of $517,838.00 for construction of the 2021 Utility 
Improvement Projects.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-43 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
ACCEPTING THE BIDS AND AWARDING THE REMAINING WASTEWATER 
PORTIONS OF THE CONTRACT FOR THE 2021 UTILITY IMPROVEMENT 
PROJECTS TO QRO MEX CONSTRUCTION CO., INC. IN THE AMOUNT OF 
$517,838.00; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Capital Improvement Plan for Fiscal Year Budget 2021-2022 included the 
2021 Utitliy improvment Projects to be competitively bid as per Chapter 252 of the Local 
Government Code; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the advertisements for the Request for bids were published in the newspaper for 
three consecutive weeks beginning March 3, 2022; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the bids were due to be received by the City of Gonzales on March 24, 2022 at 
2:00 p.m.; and, 
 
WHEREAS, bids were received from, Diamond X Construction, Inc., Inc., Qro Mex 
Construction Co., Inc., M&C Fonseca Construction Co., Inc., R-Construction Civil, LLC and 
J&R Contracting Services, Inc. by the due date published; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Local Government Code Section 252.043(a) states that the if the competitive 
bidding requirement applies to the contract for goods or services, the contract must be awarded 
to the lowest responsible bidder or to the bidder who provides goods and services at the best 
value for the municipality; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Engineer evaluated the proposals and recommends awarding the contract 
to Qro Mex Construction Co., Inc. who is the lowest responsible bidder with a base bid amount 
of $1,591,042; and,  
 
WHEREAS, as was allowed by the bid proposal, a portion of the contract was awarded to Qro 
Mex Construction Co., Inc at the April 14, 2022 City Council meeting in the amount of 
$1,073,204; and,  
 
WHEREAS, City Council now desires to award the remaining portions of the contract to Qro 
Mex Construction Co., Inc in the amount of $517,838; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that entering into an agreement for the 2021 Utility 
Improvement Projects in it entirety is in the best interest of the City and its citizens and will 
further promote the public health, safety, and general welfare of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

20



 

 

Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby awards the contract for the 2021 
Utility Improvement Projects to Qro Mex Construction Co., Inc. and authorizes the City 
Manager to execute the agreement.   
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

 
 

21



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2022-44 Authorizing the City 
Manager execute a contract with Hicks and 
Company to prepare a National Historic 
Register Nomination for the Edwards School 
in an amount not to exceed $15,000 
 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales, Texas, with the support of the Edwards Association and the Gonzales 
County Historical Commission, applied for and received a National Park Service 
Underrepresented Communities grant in the amount of $50,000 to prepare a National Historic 
Register Nomination for the Edwards School property The school was built in 1914 and served 
the African American children of Gonzales County until school desegregation in 1964.  The school 
and gymnasium are owned by the Edwards Association. The small annex building, primarily used 
for storage now, is currently owned by the City of Gonzales.    
 
The Edwards Association is a small, underfunded, nonprofit, formed solely to preserve the 
Edwards School structures, with the eventual goal of establishing a museum and research center 
on the campus. The neighborhood consists of the historic Colony Street entrance, Edwards school 
site, cemetery, churches and homes.  
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The cost of the consultant services will be covered by the $50,000 grant award. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Edwards School National Historic Register Nomination RFP 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this Resolution and associated documents. 
  

22



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-44 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH HICKS 
AND COMPANY TO PREPARE A NATIONAL HISTORIC REGISTER NOMINATION 
FOR THE EDWARDS SCHOOL IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $15,000; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to retain a professional consulting firm for the Edwards School 
National Historic Register Nomination; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City issued its Request for Proposals for Edwards School National Historic 
Register Nomination, attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit A; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s costs of the consultant services will be reimbursed from the grant 
proceeds; and 
 
WHEREAS, two proposals were received and City staff, grant consultant, and Edwards 
Association representative selected Hicks and Company. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

Section 1.  The Gonzales City Council designates the City Manager, or designee, as the City’s 
authorized official.  The authorized official is given the power to contract with the consultant on 
behalf of the City of Gonzales in an amount not to exceed $15,000. 
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such 
recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the 
judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City Council 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

23



 

 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary   

 
 

24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



Edwards School – Gonzales, Texas – Underrepresented Communities Grant 

Grant # P21AP1720 

Contract Type (check one) x Professional Service [ ] Printing [ ] Equipment/Supplies [ ] Other 

Name of Contractors Contacted Address Contact Name 

A. Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 8401 Shoal Creek Blvd. #100 Austin, TX 78757  - Emily Reed  

B. Hicks and Company, 1504 West 5th Street, Austin, TX 78703 – Angela Guadette   

C.MWM Preservation, Fort Leonard Wood, MO 65473   

D. Buried Past Consulting, 12265 Holiday Hills Rd, Oskaloosa, KS 66066   

E. Ben Moore Studio, 513 Leavenworth #A, Manhattan, KS 66502   

F. Reaves Research and Consulting, Jenks, OK 74037   

G.   

Comparative Summary of Responses Received 

Firm Name or Letter ID (above) Date Quote Obtained Price Quotation How obtained? Via RFP 

A. Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 8401 Shoal Creek Blvd. #100 Austin, TX 78757  - Emily Reed
 $9,995.40 

B. Hicks and Company, 1504 West 5th Street, Austin, TX 78703 – Angela Guadette $9,999.06 
Contract awarded via Resolution of Gonzales City Council, May 9, 2022 

C.    

D.    

E.    

F.    

G.    

Basis for Selection (check one) [ ] Lowest Price [ x] Other 

Selection criteria does not have to be lowest price; however, the explanation for the basis used must be 
provided. 

• Quality of qualification submittal  

• Qualifications of consultant firm and experience of proposed staff  

• Examples of previous work and references 

• Pricing  

• Understanding of project and realistic, measurable deliverables 

50



• Interview: N/A 

 

Signature of Supervisor Verifying Accuracy Date 

51



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2022-45 Authorizing Designated 
Signatory for Contractual and Financial 
Documents for the Texas CDBG Downtown 
Revitalization Program. 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Gonzales has received a Texas Department of Agriculture CDBG Downtown 
Revitalization Program (TX CDBG-DRP) award, contract 2020 DRP 7220052 in the amount of 
$500,000 for sidewalk and infrastructure improvements. 
 
The Department of Agriculture requests that the City of Gonzales appoint persons to execute 
contractual and financial documents to request funds from the TXCDBG and submit an original 
signed copy of the Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation Form with a copy of this 
Resolution. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with current policy. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
There will be no fiscal impact to the City of Gonzales.   
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Designated Signatory Forms 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this Resolution. 
 
 
 

 
 

52



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-45 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, AUTHORIZING 
DESIGNATED SIGNATORS FOR CONTRACTUAL AND FINANCIAL DOCUMENTS 
FOR THE TEXAS GENERAL LAND OFFICE (GLO) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
BLOCK GRANT DISASTER RECOVERY (CDBG-DR) PROGRAM CONTRACT 20-065-
075-C203; DESIGNATING THE CITY MANAGER AS THE CITY’S AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE TO ACT IN ALL MATTERS IN CONNECTION WITH SAID 
GRANT; AND FINDING AND DETERMINING THAT THE MEETING AT WHICH 
THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW 
 
WHEREAS,  the City of Gonzales has received Community Development Block Grant Disaster 
Recovery (CDBG-DR) award through the Texas General Land Office (GLO) to provide 
wastewater line improvements; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to appoint persons to execute contractual and financial documents to 
request funds from the GLO; and 
 
WHEREAS, an original signed copy of the Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation 
Form is to be submitted with a copy of this Resolution; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Gonzales acknowledges that in the event that an authorized signatory of 
the City changes (elections, illness, resignations etc), the City must provide the GLO with the 
following: (1) a Resolution stating the new authorized signatory (not required if this Resolution 
states only the title and not the name of the signatory) (2) a revised Depository/Authorized 
Signatories Designation Form. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the Mayor and City 
Manager to execute contractual documents between the Texas General Land Office and City for 
the Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery (CDBG-DR) Program project. 
 
Section 2. The City Council of the City of Gonzales hereby authorizes the City Manager and 
Finance Director to execute all financial documents required for the requesting of funds approved 
in the GLO CDBG-DR Program project. 
 
Section 3. The City Council directs and directs and designates City Manager as the City’s 
Authorized Representative to act in all matters in connection with the GLO CDBG-DR Program 
contract 20-065-075-C203. 
 
Section 4. It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Resolution is 
passed is open to the public as required by law, and that the public notice of the time, place and 
purpose of the meeting was given as required. 

53



 

 

Section 5. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage and it is so 
resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      Connie Kacir, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 

  

54



A202 

  Page 1  
2020 TxCDBG Implementation Manual Form required as of September 1, 2020 

 
Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation Form 

 
 

Grant Recipient: City of Gonzales          TxCDBG Contract No.2020 DRP 7220052 
 
The individuals listed below are designated by resolution as authorized signatories for contractual and 
environmental review documents. 
 

                              Connie Kacir                                  Tim Patek 

(Name)   (Name) 

Mayor    City Manager 

(Title)   (Title) 

    

(Signature)   (Signature) 

    

 
In addition to the individuals listed above, the individuals listed below are designated by resolution as 
authorized signatories for the Request for Payment Form (Form A203)—(At least two (2) signatories 
required). 
 

                                Laura Zella                                   Tim Patek 

(Name)   (Name) 

Director of Finance   City Manager 

(Title)   (Title) 

    

(Signature)   (Signature) 

    

    

    

(Name)   (Name) 

    

(Title)   (Title) 

    

(Signature)   (Signature) 

 
NOTE: A copy of a Resolution passed by the city council or county commissioner’s court authorizing the 
signatories must be submitted along with this form. Grant Recipients are strongly encouraged to use the 
sample resolution provided.  

55



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution 2022-46 Designating Sage Capital 
Bank as the Gonzales Economic 
Development’s Depository and Authorizing 
the Board President to Negotiate and Enter 
into a Depository Agreement with Sage 
Capital Bank 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Pursuant to the Texas Local Government Code Section 105.016(a) the governing body shall 
designate, by an order recorded in its minutes, the bank, credit union, or saving association to 
serve as a depository for the municipality’s funds. 
 
The Request for Proposals for the Bank Depository was posted on March 3, 2022 and advertised 
in the newspaper for two weeks with proposals to be due by March 25, 2022.  The GEDC 
received two responses to the RFP and were from Sage Capital Bank and Gonzales National 
Bank, branch of First National Bank of Shiner.    
 
On April 6, 2022, The City Finance Director, GEDC Director and GEDC Treasurer evaluated the 
proposals based on the criteria set forth in the RFP and ranked the proposals with a possible 
score of 100 points; Sage Capital Bank had the highest score. Score sheets and documents are 
available in the EDC office.  
 
On April 25, 2022 the GEDC voted unanimously to award the depository agreement to Sage 
Capital Bank.  
  
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with what has been done in the past. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A.    
      
ATTACHMENTS: 
Sage Capital Bank Depository Agreement.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends Council award the bid to Sage Capital Bank. 
 
 
 

56



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-46 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
DESIGNATING SAGE CAPITAL BANK AS THE GONZALES ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT’S DEPOSITORY AND AUTHORIZING THE BOARD PRESIDENT 
TO NEGOTIATE AND ENTER INTO A DEPOSITORY AGREEMENT WITH SAGE 
CAPITAL BANK; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, on March 3, 2022 the Request for Proposals for the Bank Depository was posted 
and advertised in the newspaper for two weeks with proposals to be due by March 25, 2022; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Gonzales Economic Development received two responses to the RFP and 
were from Sage Capital Bank and Gonzales National Bank, branch of First National Bank of 
Shiner; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 6, 2022, the EDC Director, Treasurer and City’s Finance Director met 
and evaluated the proposals based on criteria set forth in the RFP and ranked the proposals with 
a possible score of 100 points; Sage Capital Bank scored the highest; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation finds that negotiating and 
entering into an Agreement with Sage Capital Bank for depository services would be in the 
best interest of the GEDC and will further promote the public health, safety, and general 
welfare of the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby authorizes the Gonzales 
Economic Development Corporation Board President to negotiate and enter into an Agreement 
for depository services to Sage Capital Bank.   
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 

57



 

 

Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 
 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
 
 

58



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2022-47 Authorizing the City 
Manager to Enter into a Lease Agreement with 
Yamaha Motor Finance Corporation for a Four 
Year Lease on Ten Yamaha Drive2 QuieTech 
Fleet Golf Carts for an Annual Amount of 
$6,960.00 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Golf Course currently has twenty-five carts that it is leasing from Yamaha. The lease on ten 
of these golf carts ends in June and the staff would like the opportunity to replace them with 10 
brand new lease carts. The proposal that Yamaha provided city staff for the leasing of ten new 
carts is $580.00 monthly which totals $6,960.00 annually.  The term for the agreement is four 
years beginning on June 15, 2022 and end May of 2026.  With the leasing of the ten golf carts, we 
get a 4 year warranty for mechanical repairs. There is the option of purchasing the 10 golf carts 
that are already in use at the golf course as they come off lease, but the carts would cost $2,000.00 
a cart and the city would incur all maintenance expenses going forward.  If we purchased the carts, 
they will all need new batteries, brakes, tires, etcetera and would be the maintenance staff’s 
responsibility to fix. The staff strongly recommends renewing the lease agreement.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The golf cart rental revenue that the City of Gonzales received for the 2020-2021 budget was 
$51,664.45 in GL account 100-4-404.437. The Golf Course Equipment rental expense that the City 
of Gonzales paid for the 2020-2021 budget was $14,817.21 in GL account 100-7-206.617. After 
paying for the rental of the golf carts, we made $36,847.24 in the 2020-2021 budget.     
 
City staff budgeted $18,546 in account #100-7-206.617 Golf Course Equipment line for Fiscal 
Year 2021-2022 to lease golf carts. It has been verified with the Finance Department the 
availability of these funds in Account Golf Course Equipment. The Buy Board Contract number 
is 611-20. 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends approval of this resolution. 

59



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-47 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO A LEASE AGREEMENT 
WITH YAMAHA MOTOR FINANCE CORPORATION FOR A FOUR-YEAR LEASE ON 
TEN YAMAHA DRIVE2 QUIETECH FLEET GOLF CARS FOR AN ANNUAL AMOUNT 
OF $6,960.00 AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the Independence Golf Course is proposing to rent ten additional golf carts to be 
utilized at the course; and, 
 
WHEREAS, city staff budgeted $18,546 in account #100-7-206.617 Golf Course Equipment line 
for Fiscal Year 2021-2022 to lease golf carts; and,    
 
WHEREAS, staff was presented a proposal from Yamaha financing to renew the lease of ten 
Yamaha Drive2 QuieTech Fleet Golf Cars for four years with an annual amount of $6,960.00; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds that the lease renewal for ten Yamaha Drive2 
QuieTech Fleet Golf Cars for four years serves the best interest of the City of Gonzales. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby authorizes the City 
Manager to enter into a Lease Agreement with Yamaha Motor Finance Corporation for a Four 
Year Lease on ten Yamaha Drive2 QuieTech Fleet Golf Cars for an annual amount of $6,960.00.   
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and such 
recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part of the 
judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City Council 
hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

60



 

 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
          
 
              
      Connie Kacir, Mayor     
  
 
ATTEST:      
 
______________________________  
Kristina Vega, City Secretary    
 

 
 
 

 
 

61



Proposal Expressly 
Prepared For: 

Independence Golf Course 
 

Attn: Marty Ficken 
 

 
 

Prepared By:  

JT Carney   

District Sales Manager 

Yamaha Golf-Car Company 

11/22/2021 

 

 

 

  

 

62



 

     

 

Equipment Details 

 

Equipment Quoted: 

 

- (10) 2023 Yamaha Drive2 QuieTech Fleet Golf Cars  

 

 

 

Color Options Included: 

 

- Fleet: Sunstone (Beige) 

 

 

Optional Equipment Included (Fleet) 

 

- Beige Top 

- Hinged Windshield 

- Information Holder  

- Fleet Numbers (2 per car)  

- USB Ports 

- Custom Logo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Yamaha’s Factory Direct Service  

 
Yamaha Golf Car Company’s Fleet Service Technician, Ramondo Wilkins will complete all warranty 

service on your fleet of Golf Cars.  I’m sure you will enjoy the benefits of having Ramondo to service 

your current fleet of cars along with his professionalism during course visits.  For any service needs 

please call Ramondo at (404) 558-6530. 

 

  

63



 

     

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

I have read and agree to the above conditions set forth in the Golf-Car Warranty _______________ (Initial) 

64



 

     

  
Equipment Maintenance Schedule 

 
While Yamaha Golf-Car Company maintains a network of reliable service providers that are willing and able to assist 
you at any time, the following are best practices that will ensure that your golf car fleet stays in optimum working 
condition, cutting down on the need of service assistance: 
  

Daily Safety Checklist: 
  

• Visually inspect all equipment for damage. Be sure all nuts, bolts, and screws are tight. 

• Insure that all warning and instruction labels are on equipment and in good condition. 

• Check equipment for proper and safe operation. 

• Maintain a proper tire pressure of 18 psi for gas cars, and 22 psi for electric cars. 

• Check drive unit, transmission, engine, and fuel system (gasoline equipment) for leaks.  
  

Daily Performance Inspection: 
  

• Forward/Reverse Switch: Check for proper operation. 

• Brakes: Be sure brakes function properly. 

• Parking Brake: When latched, the parking brake should lock the wheels and hold the vehicle stationary. 

• Reverse Buzzer: The reverse buzzer will sound as a warning when the forward/reverse handle or switch is in the 
reverse position. 

  

Daily Maintenance: 
  

• Remove trash from bag well, floorboard, dash compartment, and drink holders. 

• Wash exterior of equipment, including seats and bag well. Do not pressure wash.  

• Wash engine compartment. Avoid all electrical components and connections. Do not pressure wash.  

• Keep equipment clean with damp cloth. 

• Change or repair flat tires. 

• Fuel: Check fuel level. 

• Engine: Check for proper engine oil level. 

• Battery: Check battery post; wires should be tight and free of corrosion, and battery should be fully charged.  
  

Monthly Maintenance: 
  

• Engine: Check engine cooling air intake; clean if necessary. Visually inspect the unshrouded area around the engine 
exhaust for grass and debris; clean if necessary. 

• Tires: Check air pressure and adjust as necessary. 

  
 

I have read and understand the above Equipment Maintenance Schedule __________ (Initial) 

  
  

65



 

     

  

Terms and Conditions for Returning Vehicles or Trades 

  
Sole Responsibility, if applicable: 
 
Independence Golf Course agrees to accept sole responsibility for any loss or damage to its returned cars 
beyond ordinary wear due to normal use. The returned cars must meet the following conditions: 
 
1.) All cars must be free of all liens and encumbrances. 

2.) All cars must be capable of running at least nine (9) holes of golf. 

3.) All cars must be the same quantity and year model as originally evaluated. 

4.) All cars must be clean, and free of trash, scorecards, pencils, tees, etc. 

5.) All cars must have a working charger. 

6.) All cars must have four (4) serviceable tires that retain proper air pressure. 

7.) All cars must steer properly in all directions. 

8.) All batteries must be free of corrosion, and properly filled with water. 
  

Furthermore, Independence Golf Course understands and agrees to further charges being assessed if the 

below conditions are found upon Yamaha Golf-Car Company’s inspection of the returned cars: 

1.) Severely damaged or missing chargers 

2.) Inoperable cars 

3.) Minor damage (damage to bodies, bumpers, or seats) 

4.) Major damage (frame damage, wrecked cars, etc.) 

  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I have read and agree to the above terms and conditions for returning vehicles and/or trades ______________ (Initial) 

66



 

     

 

Pricing Details 

 

New Car Lease Pricing:  

- 48 Month Lease Term 

- BuyBoard Contract # 611-20 

 

Vehicle 
# of 

Cars 

Price per 

Car 

Total Monthly 

Price 

2023 Yamaha Drive2 QuieTech Fleet Golf Cars 10 $58.00 $580.00 

 

 
 

 

If the proposal is acceptable under the above terms please sign and date 
 

 

 

 
 

Accepted by: __________________________  Date: _____________   

          City of Gonzalez 

 

 

 

 

Accepted by:    Date:  11/22/2021 
           Yamaha District Sales Manager 

 

 

 

 

Accepted by: __________________________  Date: _____________           
              Regional Sales Manager     

  

** All proposals must be signed and approved by YGC Management  
 

 

67



    COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2022-48 Approving a Corrected 
Amendment to Original Agreement and 
Amendments between the Gonzales Economic 
Development Corporation and Winbin 
Ventures LLC. 
 
 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
At its April 25, 2022, meeting the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation (GEDC) 
approved a Second Amendment to Loan Agreement between the Gonzales Economic 
Development Corporation and Winbin Ventures, LLC. The item passes unanimously. A Second 
Amendment is needed because the borrower in default of the original loan agreement and the 
borrower desires to repay the GEDC the loan balance. 
 
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
GEDC is authorized to make loans for permissible projects, further the borrower is willing to pay 
off the loan balance at new interest rate over a seven-year period. 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Once the loan is paid in full GEDC should recover $53,057 of the original loan balance and 
$1,900.75 in interest. This borrower is eligible for 50% loan forgiveness once ½ of the loan has 
been paid off if they do not miss any payments and are not in default of the agreement.  
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Second Amendment 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATIONS: 
GEDC Board and Staff respectfully request City Council action deemed appropriate. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

68



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-48  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS, 
APPROVING A SECOND AMENDMENT TO A LOAN AGREEMENT WITH WINBIN 
VENTURES, LLC BETWEEN THE GONZALES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION AND WINBIN VENTURES, LLC, A TEXAS LIMITED LIABILITY 
COMPANY AND PROVIDING FOR AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation is a Type B economic 
development corporation, created pursuant to Chapter 505 of the Texas Local Government Code, 
as amended (hereinafter referred to as the “GEDC”); and 
 
WHEREAS,  on or about April 8, 2013, the Lender and Borrower entered into the original Loan 
Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Original Agreement”) regarding the construction of a 
53 room, three (3) story limited-service hotel, located on an approximately 5.538-acre tract of 
land, and 0.382-acre tract of land, located in the City of Gonzales, Gonzales County, Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS,  on or about July 11, 2018, the Lender and Borrower entered into the First 
Amendment to Loan Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “First Amendment”) to address 
the repayment of the loan; and  
 
WHEREAS, on or about March 7, 2022, the Lender sent Borrower notice of termination of the 
Original Agreement and First Amendment due to the failure to repay the loan; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 5, 2022, the Lender and Borrower met at a meeting of the Lender to 
discuss the repayment of the loan; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Lender and Borrower to reinstate the Original Agreement and 
First Amendment as modified by this Second Amendment, and that the Original Agreement and 
First Amendment are hereby reinstated, as modified by this Second Amendment. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas, does hereby approve the Second 
Amendment to Loan Agreement between the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation and 
WinBin Ventures, LLC, a Texas limited liability company, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit A, and is incorporated herein for all purposes.  
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 

69



 

 

 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
 

       
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
 

70



 

 

 
Exhibit A 

 
[Corrected Amendment to Original Agreement and Amendments] 

 

71



SECOND AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT 
 
         
 
Borrower:  WINBIN VENTURES, LLC 

6206 Willers Way 
Houston, Texas 77057 
 

Lender:  GONZALES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 
820 Saint Joseph Street 
Gonzales, Texas 78629 

 
This SECOND AMENDMENT TO LOAN AGREEMENT by and between WINBIN 

VENTURES, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (hereinafter referred to as the “Borrower”), 
and the GONZALES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Texas non-profit 
corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Lender”), is made and executed on the following 
recitals, terms and conditions.  

 
WHEREAS,  on or about April 8, 2013, the Lender and Borrower entered into the original 

Loan Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “Original Agreement”) regarding the construction 
of a 53 room, three (3) story limited-service hotel, located on an approximately 5.538-acre tract of 
land, and 0.382-acre tract of land, located in the City of Gonzales, Gonzales County, Texas; and 

 
WHEREAS,  on or about July 11, 2018, the Lender and Borrower entered into the First 

Amendment to Loan Agreement (hereinafter referred to as the “First Amendment”) to address the 
repayment of the loan; and  

 
WHEREAS, on or about March 7, 2022, the Lender sent Borrower notice of termination 

of the Original Agreement and First Amendment due to the failure to repay the loan; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 5, 2022, the Lender and Borrower met at a meeting of the Lender to 

discuss the repayment of the loan; and  
 
WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Lender and Borrower to reinstate the Original 

Agreement and First Amendment as modified by this Second Amendment, and that the Original 
Agreement and First Amendment are hereby reinstated, as modified by this Second Amendment. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the agreements contained herein, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Lender and Borrower agree as follows: 
 
SECTION 1.  FINDINGS INCORPORATED. 
 
 The foregoing recitals are hereby incorporated into the body of this Second Agreement and 
shall be considered part of the mutual covenants, consideration and promises that bind the parties. 
 

72



   

              
Page 2 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

SECTION 2.  AMENDMENTS TO ORIGINAL AGREEMENT AND FIRST 
AMENDMENT. 

 
(a) Amendment to Original Agreement.  That Section 2 of the Original Agreement is hereby 

amended to read as follows: 
 

“This Agreement shall be effective as of the Effective Date, as defined herein, and shall 
continue thereafter until all obligations of Borrower to Lender have been performed in full, 
or until June 1, 2029, whichever is later, unless terminated sooner under the provisions 
hereof.” 

 
(b) Amendment to Original Agreement.  That Section 3(i) of the Original Agreement is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“Loan. The word “Loan” or “Loans” means and includes this loan and financial 
accommodations from Lender to Borrower described in this Agreement, First Amendment, 
and Second Amendment and described on any exhibit or schedule attached to this 
Agreement, First Amendment, or Second Amendment.” 

 
(c) Amendment to Original Agreement.  That Section 3(j) of the Original Agreement is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“Note.  The word “Note” means the interest bearing Promissory Note of even date 
herewith, executed by and between the parties hereto in the remaining principal amount of 
Fifty-Three Thousand Fifty-Seven and 01/100 Dollars ($53,057.01), accruing interest 
at the rate of 1.00% per annum, due upon demand and payable on or before June 1, 2029, 
a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit B-2 of this First Amendment.” 

 
(d) Amendment to Original Agreement.  That Section 4(d) of the Original Agreement is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“Repayable Loan. The Borrower covenants and agrees to repay the Loan to Lender in 
accordance with the loan repayment schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A-2 of this Second 
Amendment. In the event fifty percent (50%) of the remaining principal amount of Fifty-
Three Thousand Fifty-Seven and 01/100 Dollars ($53,057.01) or Twenty-Six 
Thousand Five Hundred Twenty-Eight and 51/100 Dollars ($26,528.51) is repaid to 
Lender consistent with the loan repayment schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A-2 of this 
Second Amendment, the remaining principal amount of Twenty-Six Thousand Five 
Hundred Twenty-Eight and 50/100 Dollars ($26,528.50) shall be forgiven and not due 
and payable by Borrower to Lender.” 

 
(e) Amendment to Original Agreement.  That Section 7(d) of the Original Agreement is 

hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
“Repayment of Loan.  Failure of the Borrower to repay the Loan to Lender in accordance 

73



   

              
Page 3 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

with Section 4(d) of this Agreement and Second Amendment is an Event of Default.” 
 
SECTION 3.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 
 
 The following miscellaneous provisions are a part of this Second Amendment: 
 
(a) Amendments. This Second Amendment constitutes the entire understanding and 

agreement of the parties as to the matters set forth in this Second Amendment.  No 
alteration of or amendment to this Second Amendment shall be effective unless given in 
writing and signed by the party or parties sought to be charged or bound by the alteration 
or amendment.   

 
(b) Applicable Law and Venue. This Second Amendment shall be governed by and construed 

in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, and all obligations of the parties created 
hereunder are performable in Gonzales County, Texas.  Venue for any action arising under 
this Second Amendment shall lie in the state district courts of Gonzales County, Texas. 

 
(c) Assignment. This Second Amendment may not be assigned without the express written 

consent of the other party. 
 
(d) Binding Obligation. This Second Amendment shall become a binding obligation on the 

signatories upon execution by all signatories hereto. Borrower warrants and represents that 
the individual or individuals executing this First Amendment on behalf of Borrower has 
full authority to execute this Second Amendment and bind the Borrower to the same. 
Lender warrants and represents that the individual or individuals executing this Second 
Amendment on Lender’s behalf has full authority to execute this Second Amendment and 
bind it to the same. 

 
(e) Caption Headings.  Caption headings in this Second Amendment are for convenience 

purposes only and are not to be used to interpret or define the provisions of the Second 
Amendment. 

 
(f) Counterparts.  This Second Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which shall constitute one and the 
same document. 

 
(g) Effective Date. The effective date (the “Effective Date”) of this Second Amendment shall 

be the date of the latter to execute this Second Amendment by and between Lender and 
Borrower. 

 
(h) Filing. This Second Amendment shall be filed in the deed records of Gonzales County, 

Texas. The provisions of this Second Amendment shall be deemed to run with the land and 
shall be binding on heirs, successors and assigns of the Borrower. 

 
(i) Original Agreement and any Amendments. All of the terms, conditions, and obligations 

74



   

              
Page 4 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

of the Original Agreement, First Amendment, and any other amendments remain in full 
force and effect except where specifically modified by this Second Amendment. 

 
(j) Severability.  The provisions of this Second Amendment are severable. If any paragraph, 

section, subdivision, sentence, clause, or phrase of this Second Amendment is for any 
reason held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be contrary to law or contrary to any 
rule or regulation have the force and effect of the law, the remaining portions of the Second 
Amendment shall be enforced as if the invalid provision had never been included. 

 
(k) Time is of the Essence.  Time is of the essence in the performance of this Second 

Amendment. 
 
 
 
 
 

[The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank] 

75



   

              
Page 5 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

BORROWER ACKNOWLEDGES HAVING READ ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THIS 
AGREEMENT, AND BORROWER AGREES TO ITS TERMS.  THIS AGREEMENT IS 
EFFECTIVE AS OF THE EFFECTIVE DATE AS IS PROVIDED HEREIN. 
 
 

BORROWER: 
 

WINBIN VENTURES, LLC, 
      a Texas limited liability company 
 
 

By:        
 Kris Binnion  
 Managing Member 
Date Signed:       
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS     § 
      § 
COUNTY OF GONZALES   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of    
 , 2022, by Kris Binnion Managing Member of WinBin Ventures, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, on behalf of said company. 
 
 
             

Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 

76



   

              
Page 6 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

WINBIN VENTURES, LLC, 
      a Texas limited liability company 
 
 

By:        
 Anna Winter 
 Managing Member 
Date Signed:       
 
 
 

STATE OF TEXAS     § 
      § 
COUNTY OF GONZALES   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of    
 , 2022, by Anna Winter, Managing Member of WinBin Ventures, LLC, a Texas limited 
liability company, on behalf of said company. 
 
 
             

Notary Public, State of Texas 
  

77



   

              
Page 7 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

 
LENDER: 

 
GONZALES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
CORPORATION, 
a Texas non-profit corporation 

 
 

By:         
Andy Rodriguez, President 

Date Signed:        
 
 

 
 

STATE OF TEXAS     § 
      § 
COUNTY OF GONZALES   § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on the ____ day of      
, 2022, by Andy Rodriguez, President of the Gonzales Economic Development Corporation, a 
Texas non-profit corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
   
 
             

Notary Public, State of Texas 

78



   

              
Page 8 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

Exhibit A-2 
 

[Loan Repayment Schedule] 
 

79



   

              
Page 9 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

 

Simple Loan Calculator Winbin DRAFT

Enter values
53,057.01$    

1.00%
7

6/1/2022

654.26$         
84

1,900.75$      
54,957.76$    

No.
Payment

Date
Beginning
Balance Payment Principal Interest

Ending
Balance

1 7/1/2022 53,057.01$         654.26$         610.04$         44.21$           52,446.97$    
2 8/1/2022 52,446.97$         654.26$         610.55$         43.71$           51,836.41$    
3 9/1/2022 51,836.41$         654.26$         611.06$         43.20$           51,225.35$    
4 10/1/2022 51,225.35$         654.26$         611.57$         42.69$           50,613.78$    
5 11/1/2022 50,613.78$         654.26$         612.08$         42.18$           50,001.70$    
6 12/1/2022 50,001.70$         654.26$         612.59$         41.67$           49,389.11$    
7 1/1/2023 49,389.11$         654.26$         613.10$         41.16$           48,776.00$    
8 2/1/2023 48,776.00$         654.26$         613.61$         40.65$           48,162.39$    
9 3/1/2023 48,162.39$         654.26$         614.12$         40.14$           47,548.27$    

10 4/1/2023 47,548.27$         654.26$         614.64$         39.62$           46,933.63$    
11 5/1/2023 46,933.63$         654.26$         615.15$         39.11$           46,318.49$    
12 6/1/2023 46,318.49$         654.26$         615.66$         38.60$           45,702.83$    
13 7/1/2023 45,702.83$         654.26$         616.17$         38.09$           45,086.65$    
14 8/1/2023 45,086.65$         654.26$         616.69$         37.57$           44,469.96$    
15 9/1/2023 44,469.96$         654.26$         617.20$         37.06$           43,852.76$    
16 10/1/2023 43,852.76$         654.26$         617.72$         36.54$           43,235.05$    
17 11/1/2023 43,235.05$         654.26$         618.23$         36.03$           42,616.82$    
18 12/1/2023 42,616.82$         654.26$         618.75$         35.51$           41,998.07$    
19 1/1/2024 41,998.07$         654.26$         619.26$         35.00$           41,378.81$    
20 2/1/2024 41,378.81$         654.26$         619.78$         34.48$           40,759.04$    
21 3/1/2024 40,759.04$         654.26$         620.29$         33.97$           40,138.74$    
22 4/1/2024 40,138.74$         654.26$         620.81$         33.45$           39,517.93$    
23 5/1/2024 39,517.93$         654.26$         621.33$         32.93$           38,896.61$    
24 6/1/2024 38,896.61$         654.26$         621.85$         32.41$           38,274.76$    
25 7/1/2024 38,274.76$         654.26$         622.36$         31.90$           37,652.40$    
26 8/1/2024 37,652.40$         654.26$         622.88$         31.38$           37,029.51$    
27 9/1/2024 37,029.51$         654.26$         623.40$         30.86$           36,406.11$    
28 10/1/2024 36,406.11$         654.26$         623.92$         30.34$           35,782.19$    
29 11/1/2024 35,782.19$         654.26$         624.44$         29.82$           35,157.75$    
30 12/1/2024 35,157.75$         654.26$         624.96$         29.30$           34,532.79$    
31 1/1/2025 34,532.79$         654.26$         625.48$         28.78$           33,907.31$    
32 2/1/2025 33,907.31$         654.26$         626.00$         28.26$           33,281.31$    
33 3/1/2025 33,281.31$         654.26$         626.52$         27.73$           32,654.78$    
34 4/1/2025 32,654.78$         654.26$         627.05$         27.21$           32,027.74$    
35 5/1/2025 32,027.74$         654.26$         627.57$         26.69$           31,400.17$    
36 6/1/2025 31,400.17$         654.26$         628.09$         26.17$           30,772.07$    

Monthly payment
Number of payments
Total interest
Total cost of loan

Loan amount
Annual interest rate
Loan period in years
Start date of loan

80



   

              
Page 10 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

37 7/1/2025 30,772.07$         654.26$         628.62$         25.64$           30,143.46$    
38 8/1/2025 30,143.46$         654.26$         629.14$         25.12$           29,514.32$    
39 9/1/2025 29,514.32$         654.26$         629.66$         24.60$           28,884.65$    
40 10/1/2025 28,884.65$         654.26$         630.19$         24.07$           28,254.47$    
41 11/1/2025 28,254.47$         654.26$         630.71$         23.55$           27,623.75$    
42 12/1/2025 27,623.75$         654.26$         631.24$         23.02$           26,992.51$    
43 1/1/2026 26,992.51$         654.26$         631.77$         22.49$           26,360.75$    
44 2/1/2026 26,360.75$         654.26$         632.29$         21.97$           25,728.46$    
45 3/1/2026 25,728.46$         654.26$         632.82$         21.44$           25,095.64$    
46 4/1/2026 25,095.64$         654.26$         633.35$         20.91$           24,462.29$    
47 5/1/2026 24,462.29$         654.26$         633.87$         20.39$           23,828.42$    
48 6/1/2026 23,828.42$         654.26$         634.40$         19.86$           23,194.02$    
49 7/1/2026 23,194.02$         654.26$         634.93$         19.33$           22,559.08$    
50 8/1/2026 22,559.08$         654.26$         635.46$         18.80$           21,923.62$    
51 9/1/2026 21,923.62$         654.26$         635.99$         18.27$           21,287.64$    
52 10/1/2026 21,287.64$         654.26$         636.52$         17.74$           20,651.12$    
53 11/1/2026 20,651.12$         654.26$         637.05$         17.21$           20,014.07$    
54 12/1/2026 20,014.07$         654.26$         637.58$         16.68$           19,376.49$    
55 1/1/2027 19,376.49$         654.26$         638.11$         16.15$           18,738.37$    
56 2/1/2027 18,738.37$         654.26$         638.64$         15.62$           18,099.73$    
57 3/1/2027 18,099.73$         654.26$         639.18$         15.08$           17,460.55$    
58 4/1/2027 17,460.55$         654.26$         639.71$         14.55$           16,820.85$    
59 5/1/2027 16,820.85$         654.26$         640.24$         14.02$           16,180.60$    
60 6/1/2027 16,180.60$         654.26$         640.78$         13.48$           15,539.83$    
61 7/1/2027 15,539.83$         654.26$         641.31$         12.95$           14,898.52$    
62 8/1/2027 14,898.52$         654.26$         641.84$         12.42$           14,256.68$    
63 9/1/2027 14,256.68$         654.26$         642.38$         11.88$           13,614.30$    
64 10/1/2027 13,614.30$         654.26$         642.91$         11.35$           12,971.38$    
65 11/1/2027 12,971.38$         654.26$         643.45$         10.81$           12,327.93$    
66 12/1/2027 12,327.93$         654.26$         643.99$         10.27$           11,683.95$    
67 1/1/2028 11,683.95$         654.26$         644.52$         9.74$            11,039.42$    
68 2/1/2028 11,039.42$         654.26$         645.06$         9.20$            10,394.37$    
69 3/1/2028 10,394.37$         654.26$         645.60$         8.66$            9,748.77$      
70 4/1/2028 9,748.77$           654.26$         646.14$         8.12$            9,102.63$      
71 5/1/2028 9,102.63$           654.26$         646.67$         7.59$            8,455.96$      
72 6/1/2028 8,455.96$           654.26$         647.21$         7.05$            7,808.75$      
73 7/1/2028 7,808.75$           654.26$         647.75$         6.51$            7,161.00$      
74 8/1/2028 7,161.00$           654.26$         648.29$         5.97$            6,512.70$      
75 9/1/2028 6,512.70$           654.26$         648.83$         5.43$            5,863.87$      
76 10/1/2028 5,863.87$           654.26$         649.37$         4.89$            5,214.50$      
77 11/1/2028 5,214.50$           654.26$         649.91$         4.35$            4,564.59$      
78 12/1/2028 4,564.59$           654.26$         650.46$         3.80$            3,914.13$      
79 1/1/2029 3,914.13$           654.26$         651.00$         3.26$            3,263.13$      
80 2/1/2029 3,263.13$           654.26$         651.54$         2.72$            2,611.59$      
81 3/1/2029 2,611.59$           654.26$         652.08$         2.18$            1,959.51$      
82 4/1/2029 1,959.51$           654.26$         652.63$         1.63$            1,306.88$      
83 5/1/2029 1,306.88$           654.26$         653.17$         1.09$            653.71$         
84 6/1/2029 653.71$              654.26$         653.71$         0.54$            0.00$            

81



   

              
Page 11 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

Exhibit B-2 
 

[Note]

82



   

              
Page 12 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

PROMISSORY NOTE 
 
         
 
 
$53,057.01                                                                                                      May 1, 2022 
 (“Effective Date”) 
 

WINBIN VENTURES, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (including successors and 
assigns, hereinafter referred to as the “Maker”), For Value Received, promises and agrees to pay 
unto the order of GONZALES ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Texas non-
profit corporation (hereinafter referred to as the “Payee”), at its corporate offices located at 820 
Saint Joseph Street, Gonzales, Texas 78629, in lawful money of the United States of America, the 
principal sum of FIFTY-THREE THOUSAND FIFTY-SEVEN AND 01/100 DOLLARS 
($53,057.01), or so much as shall be advanced, said sums to accrue interest at the rate of 1.00% 
per annum. 
 
 TERMS OF PAYMENT:  The principal of this Note is due on demand, but in any event, 
on or before June 1, 2029. Notwithstanding the foregoing, loan proceeds hereunder shall be 
advanced in accordance with the terms and provisions of that certain Loan Agreement and the 
Second Amendment to Loan Agreement executed as of even date herewith between Maker and 
Payee (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Loan Agreement”), and such loan proceeds shall 
be repaid and/or forgiven according to said Loan Agreement after such advance if Maker is not 
then in default under the Loan Agreement.  As such, Payee shall make no demand on principal 
under this Note except for upon occurrence of an Event of Default as that term is defined in the 
Loan Agreement.  
 
 ALL PAST due principal shall bear interest until paid at a rate not to exceed prime plus 
4%. 
 
 THIS LOAN is a line of credit but is not revolving.  As already stated, loan proceeds made 
hereunder are also governed by the Loan Agreement of even date herewith. 
 
 IF DEFAULT is made in the payment of any interest or principal hereof, as and when the 
same is or becomes due, or if an Event of Default occurs under any instrument securing the 
payment hereof or executed in connection herewith, including the Loan Agreement, the owner and 
holder of this Note may declare all sums owing hereon due and payable within thirty (30) days of 
the date of notice.  If default is made in the payment of this Note at maturity (regardless of how its 
maturity may be brought about), and the same is placed in the hands of an attorney for collection, 
or suit is filed hereon, or proceedings are had in bankruptcy, probate, receivership or other judicial 
proceedings for the establishment or collection of any amount called for hereunder, or any amount 
payable or to be payable hereunder is collected through any such proceedings, Maker agrees and 
is also to pay to the owner and holder of this Note a reasonable amount as attorneys’ or collection 
fees. 

83



   

              
Page 13 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

 
 Except as provided herein and in the Loan Agreement, upon an Event of Default (as that 
term is defined in the Loan Agreement) only, Maker, co-makers, signers, permitted assigns, 
sureties, endorsers and guarantors, and each of them, expressly waive demand and presentment for 
payment, notice of nonpayment, protest, notice of protest, notice of dishonor, notice of intent to 
accelerate the maturity hereof, notice of the acceleration of the maturity hereof, bringing of suit 
and diligence in taking any action to collect amounts called for hereunder and in the handling of 
securities at any time existing in connection herewith; and are and shall be jointly, severally, 
directly and primarily liable for the payment of all sums owing and to be owing hereon, regardless 
of and without any notice, diligence, act or omission as or with respect to the collection of any 
amount called for hereunder or in connection with any right, lien, interest or property at any and 
all times had or existing as security for any amount called for hereunder. 
 
 IT IS the intention of Maker and Payee to conform strictly to applicable usury laws.  
Accordingly, if the transactions contemplated hereby would be usurious under applicable law 
(including the laws of the State of Texas and the laws of the United States of America), then, in 
that event, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any agreement entered into in 
connection with or as security for this Note, it is agreed as follows: (i) the aggregate of all 
consideration which constitutes interest under applicable law that is taken, reserved, contracted 
for, charged or received under this Note or under any of the other aforesaid agreements or 
otherwise in connection with this Note shall under no circumstances exceed the maximum amount 
of interest allowed by applicable law, and any excess shall be canceled automatically and, if 
theretofore paid, shall be credited on the Note by the holder hereof (or, to the extent that this Note 
shall have been or would thereby be paid in full, refunded to the Maker); and (ii) in the event that 
maturity of this Note is accelerated by reason of an election by the holder hereof resulting from 
any Event of Default, or in the event of any required or permitted prepayment, then such 
consideration that constitutes interest may never include more than the maximum amount allowed 
by applicable law, and excess interest, if any, provided for in this Note or otherwise shall be 
canceled automatically as of the date of such acceleration or prepayment and, if theretofore paid, 
shall be credited on this Note (or, to the extent that this Note shall have been or would thereby be 
paid in full, refunded to the Maker). 
 
 THIS NOTE has been executed and delivered in and shall be construed in accordance with 
and governed by the laws of the State of Texas and of the United States of America, except that 
V.T.C.A. Finance Code, Chapter 346, as amended (which regulates certain revolving credit loan 
accounts and revolving tri-party accounts) shall not apply hereto.  Payee’s address for notice is 
820 Saint Joseph Street, Gonzales, Texas 78629. 
 
 
 
 

[The Remainder of this Page Intentionally Left Blank] 
 
 
 

84



   

              
Page 14 of 14 

Second Amendment to Loan Agreement 
Gonzales EDC – WinBin Ventures, LLC 
5/9/2022 2:53 PM 

In witness whereof, Maker has executed this Note to be effective as of the Effective Date. 
 

 
MAKER: 
 
WINBIN VENTURES, LLC, 

      a Texas limited liability company 
 
 

By:        
 Kris Binnion  
 Managing Member 
Date Signed:       
 
 
 
By:        
 Anna Winter 
 Managing Member 
Date Signed:       

 

85



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution #2022-49 Authorizing the 
Appointments to the Gonzales Convention & 
Visitors Bureau, Gonzales Economic 
Development Corporation and Main Street 
Advisory Board 

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
As per the Charter the City Council shall have the power to appoint the members of all boards 
and commissions. Such boards and commissions shall have all powers and duties created by the 
charter, by city ordinance or by law. 
 
During the March 3, 2014 City Council Meeting the Council established a uniform appointment 
month of September for all Council appointed Boards & Commissions, however at times 
appointments are needed if a vacancy occurs. 
 
The Gonzales EDC, CVB and Main Street have several vacancies due to resignations.   
 
Upon accepting the position as Main Street Director, Tiffany Hutchinson-Padilla tendered her 
resignation from the Main Street Advisory Board and the Gonzales Convention & Visitor 
Bureau.  Curtis St. Pierre tendered his resignation from the Main Street Advisory Board on 
March 23, 2022.   These resignations will leave two vacancies on the Main Street Advisory 
Board and one vacancy on the Gonzales Convention & Visitor’s Bureau.   
 
On April 8, 2022 Meena Patel tendered her resignation to the Gonzales Economic Development 
Corporation, leaving one vacancy on the board.   
 
Applications that were received were for specific boards & commissions and are attached for review.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
In 2020 the policy changed slightly to require the signed receipt of understanding of the Code of 
Ethics at the time of application. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
N/A 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully requests City Council action deemed appropriate 

86



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-49 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT TO THE CITY OF GONZALES BOARDS AND 
COMMISSIONS: GONZALES CONVENTION & VISITORS BUREAU; GONZALES 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION; MAIN STREET ADVISORY BOARD; 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council shall have the power to appoint the members of all boards and 
commissions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the boards and commissions shall have all powers and duties created by the 
charter, city ordinance or by law; and  
 
WHEREAS, the uniform appointment month is September of each year unless vacancies occur 
and at which time appointments are requested; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council herby appoints the members to the Boards & Commissions as 
attached hereto as Exhibit A.    
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby appoints the Board and 
Commission members for the terms to the boards set out in the attached Exhibit A.  

Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 
Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 

87



 

 

matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
 

88



 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

A. Gonzales Convention & Visitors Bureau 
 
The following members are appointed to the Gonzales Convention & Visitors Bureau for 
an un-expired term beginning May 12, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022:  
 
1.  

 
B. Gonzales Economic Development Corporation 

 
The following members are appointed to the Gonzales Economic Development 
Corporation for an un-expired term beginning May 12, 2021 and ending September 30, 
2022: 
 
1.  

 
C. Main Street Advisory Board 

 
The following members are appointed to the Main Street Advisory Board for an un-
expired term beginning May 12, 2021 and ending September 30, 2022: 
 
1.  
2.  

  
 

 

89



     COUNCIL AGENDA 
     ITEM BRIEFING DATA 

   
 
     DATE: May 12, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM   
Discuss, Consider & Possible Action on 
Resolution 2022-50 Approving the Lease 
Agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management, 
Inc. for the lease of several budgeted vehicles 
and authorizing the City Manager to execute 
said agreements  

 

 

 

TYPE AGENDA ITEM: 
Resolution 
 
BACKGROUND: 
On September 9, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution 2021-22 Adopting the 2021-2022 
Budget. During the budget workshops this summer, Council directed staff to lease five vehicles 
instead of purchasing. Staff contacted Enterprise and received quotes to lease those vehicles and 
the lease pricing was included in the 2021-2022 budget. The police department budgeted for two 
Tahoe’s that will replace a 2013 and 2015 Tahoe. The Building Maintenance Department 
budgeted for a half ton Silverado crew cab truck that will replace a 2003 GMC truck.  The Water 
Department budgeted for two ½ ton Chevrolet trucks to replace a 2015 F-150 and a 1994 S10 
truck.  On April 14, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution 2022-41 authorizing the City 
Manager to enter into a Master Equity Lease Agreement, Maintenance Agreement and 
Maintenance Management and Fleet Rental Agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. 
to allow for the lease of the vehicles.   
 
POLICY CONSIDERATIONS: 
This is consistent with what has been done in the past. 
  
FISCAL IMPACT: 
During the budget process, City Council expressed the desire to create the leasing of fleet 
vehicles that were needed.  Monies were budgeted within building maintenance department 
($6,000 for 2022 half ton Silverado crew cab truck), police department ($30,000 for 2 Tahoe’s), 
Water department ($12,000 for two ½ ton Chevrolet trucks). The exact fiscal impact for the 
2021-2022 budget will depend on when the vehicles arrive, but they will not exceed the amount 
budgeted.       
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
City of Gonzales – Year 1 Replacement – Equity Lease Menu Pricing 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff respectfully recommends the approval of this resolution. 
 
 
 
 

90



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-50 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF GONZALES, TEXAS 
APPROVING THE LEASE AGREEMENT WITH ENTERPRISE FLEET 
MANAGEMENT, INC. FOR THE LEASE OF SEVERAL BUDGETED VEHICLES 
AND AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE SAID AGREEMENTS; 
AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, On September 9, 2021 the City Council adopted Resolution 2021-22 Adopting 
the 2021-2022 Budget; and, 
 
WHEREAS, during budget workshops this summer, Council directed staff to lease five 
vehicles instead of purchasing; and, 
 
WHEREAS, during the budget process, City Council expressed the desire to create the leasing 
of fleet vehicles that were needed.  Monies were budgeted within building maintenance 
department ($6,000 for 2022 half ton Silverado crew cab truck), police department ($30,000 for 
2 Tahoe’s), Water department ($12,000 for two ½ ton Chevrolet trucks).  The exact fiscal impact 
will depend on when the vehicles will arrive, but they will not exceed the amount budgeted; and 
 
WHEREAS, on April 14, 2022, the City Council adopted Resolution 2022-41 authorizing the 
City Manager to enter into a Master Equity Lease Agreement, Maintenance Agreement and 
Maintenance Management and Fleet Rental Agreement with Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. 
to allow for the lease of the vehicles; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City finds that entering into an agreement with Enterprise for leasing 
vehicles would be in the best interest of the City and its citizens and will further promote the 
public health, safety, and general welfare of the City.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
GONZALES, TEXAS: 
 
Section 1.  The City Council of the City of Gonzales, Texas hereby approves the lease of 
Two 2022 Tahoes 2WD, a 2023 Chevrolet Colorado Extended Cab, a 2023 Chevrolet 1500 
Silverado 4x2 Crew Cab and a 2023 Chevrolet 1500 Silverado 4x2 Double Cab all of which are 
allocated in the 2021-2022 Budget and authorizing the City Manager execute said agreements.  
 
Section 2. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to be true, and 
such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are adopted as a part 
of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 
 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts thereof, which are in conflict or inconsistent with any 
provision of this Resolution are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict, and the provisions 
of this Resolution shall be and remain controlling as to the matters resolved herein. 
 

91



 

 

Section 4. This Resolution shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 
the State of Texas and the United States of America. 
 
Section 5. If any provision of this Resolution or the application thereof to any person or 
circumstance shall be held to be invalid, the remainder of this Resolution and the application of 
such provision to other persons and circumstances shall nevertheless be valid, and the City 
Council hereby declares that this Resolution would have been enacted without such invalid 
provision. 
 
Section 6. It is officially found, determined, and declared that the meeting at which this 
Resolution is adopted was open to the public and public notice of the time, place, and subject 
matter of the public business to be considered at such meeting, including this Resolution, was 
given, all as required by Chapter 551, Texas Government Code, as amended. 
 
Section 7. This Resolution shall be in force and effect from and after its final passage, and it 
is so resolved. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 12th day of May, 2022. 
 
 
 

 
Mayor, Connie L. Kacir 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Kristina Vega, City Secretary 
 
 

92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112


	1 Agenda 05.12.2022.kv edit
	1.1 Official Canvass coversheet revised
	1.2 Ordinance calling runoff election-translated
	2.1 (a) Minutes for April 14, 2022 Regular Meeting
	2.1 (b) Minutes for April 26, 2022 Special Called Meeting
	2.2 (a) Council Cover Sheet 2021 Utility Improvement Projects for May Meeting
	2.3 (a) Cover sheet for Edwards School
	2.3 (b) Hicks and Company
	2.3 (c) EdwardsSchoolRFPEvaluation
	2.4 (a) TXCDBG_AgendaItem_Signatory
	2.4 (b) A202 - Depository-Authorized Signatories Designation Form 2020 (3)
	Depository/Authorized Signatories Designation Form

	2.5 (a) Coversheet for Bank Depository Approval May 12 2022 - V2 Clean
	TYPE AGENDA ITEM:
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

	3.1 (a) Golf Cart Resolution
	3.1 (b) Yamaha Proposal for Independence GC 11-22-21
	3.2 (a) WinBin Ventures Datasheet
	3.2 (b) Gonzales EDC- Type B - Second Amendment - Loan Agreement - WinBin Ventures - Microtel Hotel - jlm draft clean - 040622
	3.3 (a) Boards and Commissions Appointments memo sheet
	3.4 (a) 5 vehicles budgeted to be leased with Enterprise
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF

	4.1 Financials



